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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Fibabanka A.S. (formerly named as
Miliennium Bank A.§.) (the “Bank’), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2011
and the statement of income, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Bank’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary 1o enable the preparation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with cthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited




Deloitte.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

the Barik as at 31 December 2011 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Istanbul, 13 March 2012
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Member of DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU LIMITED
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Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi
Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2011
(Currency: Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

31 December 31December
Notes 2011 2010
Assets
Cash and balances with Central Bank 7 243,385 55,261
Due from banks 8 18,903 73,346
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 54,132 96,869
-Debt instruments 9 36,319 84,556
-Derivatives held for trading purpose 9 17,813 2,313
Financial assets available for sale 15,844 14
Loans and advances to customers 10 2,099,873 629,993
Property and equipment 12 12,123 7,126
Intangible assets 13 6,073 2,044
Deferred tax assets 18 20,248 22,919
Other assets 11 9,014 4,844
Total assets 2,479,597 892.416
Liabilities
Derivatives held for trading purpose 9 16,315 23,543
Deposits from banks 14 45,547 114,708
Deposits from customers 15 2,011,789 635,560
Borrowings from banks 17 29,756 2,574
Other liabilities and provisions 16 18,446 6,019
Total Liabilities 2,121,853 782,404
Equity
Share capital 19 344,939 222,474
Capital advance 19 101,650 --
Unrealized losses on available-for-sale
investments, net of tax 21 (1,727} -
Accumulated losses 20 (87,118) (112,462)
Total shareholder's equity 357,744 110,012
Total liabilities and shareholder's equity 2,479,597 892,416

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi
Statement of Income

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(Currency: Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income

Fees and commission income
Fees and commission expenses
Net fees and commission income

Net trading income
Other operating income

Operating income

Personnel expenses

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment reversals /(losses) on loans and
advances to customers

Other expenses

Profit / (loss) before income tax
Income tax (charge)benefit

Net profit / (loss) for the year

Notes

24
24

25
25

26
27

28
12,13

10
29

18

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
176,614 78,366
(105,351) (58,546)
71,263 19,820
13,072 5,283
(1,043) (737)
12,029 4,546
5,782 3,057
1,728 3,030
7,510 6,087
90,802 30,453
(34,696) (24,229)
(5,046) (2,881)
737 (4,587)
(23,351 (17,209)
28,446 (18,453)
(3,102) 653
25,344 (17,800)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi
Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2011
(Currency: Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Notes

Profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive expense

-Additions to unrealized losses on
available-for-sale investments, gross
-Tax effect of unrealized losses on
available-for-sale investments
Other comprehensive expense for the 21
year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income/{expense)
for the year

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
2011 2010

25,344 {17,800)
(2,158) --

431 -

(1,727) -
23,617 (17,800)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31December 2011
(Currency: Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL)})

1 January- I January-
31 December 31 December
Notes 2011 2010
Net profit/(loss) for the year 25,344 (17,800)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment 12 3,360 1,798
Amortization of intangible assets 13 1,686 1,083
Impairment losses on loans and advances 10 (737) 4,587
Unearned revenue 1,609 (2,354)
Gain on sale of non-performing loans 27 (519) -
Expense accruals/ (reversals) net 1,247 {527)
Employment termination benefits 16 426 88
Unused vacation pay provision 16 131 296
Other provisions (net) 171 199
Bonus accrual provision /(reversal) 27 - (1,440)
Unrealized (gains)/losses on financial assets/liabilities (34,364) 9,079
Deferred tax (charge)/benefit 18 3,102 (653)
Gain on sale of assets held for sale and tangible assets (net) (399) (1,216)
Operating profit/(loss) before changes in operating assets/liabilities 1,057 (6,860)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Net increase in balances with banks and central bank (80,049) (9,663)
Net decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit & loss 57,791 (58,529)
Net (increase)/decrease in loans (1,459,772) 77,549
Disposal of non-current assets held for sale 1,857 3,578
Net decrease/(increase) in other assets 818 (554)
Net increase/(decrease) in deposits 1,284,024 (155,572)
Net increase/(decrease) in other taxes & liabilities 10,881 (3,621)
Employment termination benefits paid 16 (429) (18)
Net cash used in operating activities (183,822) (153,690)
Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of available-for-sale securities {52,181) -
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities 34,451 -
Purchase of premises & equipment 12 (8,615) (478)
Sale of premises & equipment 320 218
Purchase of intangible assets : 13 (5,717) {1,061)
Net cash used in investing activities (31,742) (1,321)
Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowing funding loans (net) 27,063 2,251
Proceeds from capital increase 122,463 -
Proceeds from capital advance 101,650 -
Net cash provided by financing activities 251,178 2,251
Net (decrease)/increase in cash & cash equivalents 35,614 (152,760}
Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7 78,193 229,776
Foreign exchange effect on cash and cash equivalents 11,220 1,177
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 7 125,027 78,193

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi

Notes to financial statements
31 December 2011
{Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Reporting entity

The origin of Fibabanka A.S. (“the Bank™) dates back to 1984 when it was established as a branch
of Manufacturers Hannover Trust Company in New York. In 1991, the status of the Bank as a
branch was converted to a corporation. In 1992, the name of the Bank was changed as Chemical
Bank A.S. as a result of a global merger of Manufacturers Hannover Trust Company with
Chemical Bank. The Siirmeli Group acquired 99.97% of the shares in 1997 and the name of the
Bank was changed as Sitebank A.S. (“Sitebank™).

On July 10, 2001, the ownership of Sitebank was transferred to the Savings Deposit Insurance
Fund (“SDIF”) following the decision of the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency
(“BRSA”). Under the SDIF ownership, Sitebank continued to be fully authorized to carry out
banking activities and punctually met all its obligations, which were also guaranteed by the SDIF,
until it was sold to Novabank S.A. (“Novabank™), a subsidiary of Banco Comercial Portugues, S.A.
(Millennium BCP) on 24 January 2002. The sale and purchase entailed acquisition of 100% of
share capital of Sitebank (TL 3,900 in nominal terms) together with selected assets and liabilities,
including five branches. After the acquisition, the Bank restructured all of its lines of business and
IT systems. In April 2003, the name of the Bank was changed as BankEuropa Bankas1 A.S.. On 4
July 2003, the Bank has started its banking operations in the largest three cities in Turkey. In 2006
BCP has decided to change the name of all its subsidiaries as “Millennium Bank” and for this
purpose the name of the Bank changed as “Millennium Bank A.S.” on 28 November 2006. On 21
February 2006, the Bank’s shares held by Novabank were transferred to BCP Internacional II,
Sociedade Unipessoal SGPS Lda., BCP Internacional II, Sociedade Unipessoal SGPS Lda is a
holding company settled in Portugal and all of its shares are controlled by Millennium BCP.

On 10 February 2010, the sharcholders of the Bank and Credit Europe N.V. signed a share
purchase agreement to transfer 95% of the Bank’s shares to Credit Europe N.V. Credit Europe
Bank N.V. is owned by Credit Europe Group N.V. which is a banking group founded in Holland
and an affiliate of Fiba Holding A.§.. The legal approval process of BRSA (Banking Regulation
and Supervision Agency) finalized as of 10 December 2010 and sale process has been completed
as of 27 December 2010.

In the extraordinary General Assembly held on 25 April 2011 the name of Millennium Bank A.S.
has been changed as Fibabanka A.S. (the “Bank™).

The Bank is authorized to perform all types of commercial banking activities and transactions, and
operates mainly in retail, SME and corporate banking segment.

The Bank currently has 21 branches and its head office is located at the following address:
Emirhan Cad. Barbaros Plaza Is Merkezi No: 113 Dikilitas/Besiktas Istanbul.



Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi

Notes to financial statements
31 December 2011
(Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

The following new and revised [FRSs have been applied in the cuirent year and have affected the
amounts reported and disclosures in these financial statements. Details of other new and revised
IFRSs applied in these financial statements that have had no material impact on the financial
statements are set ouf in further sections.

(a) New and Revised IFRSs affecting presentation and disclosure only

Amendments to IAS | The amendments to IAS 1 clarify that an entity may choose to

Presentation of Financial disclose an analysis of other comprehensive income by item in

Statements (as part of the statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the financial

Improvements to IFRSs statements. In the current year, for each component of equity, the

issued in 2010) Bank has chosen to present such an analysis in the statement of
changes in equity. Such amendments have been applied
retrospectively.

{b) New and Revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the financial statements

The following new and revised IFRSs have also been adopted in these financial statements. The
application of these new and revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts
reported for the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for future transactions or
arrangements,

IAS 24 Related Party IAS 24 (as revised in 2009) has been revised on the following
Disclosures two aspects: (a) IAS 24 (as revised in 2009) has changed the
(as revised in 2009) definition of a related party and (b} IAS 24 (as revised in 2009)

introduces a partial exemption from the disclosure requirements
for government-related entities.

The Bank is not a government-related entity,

Amendments to IFRS 3 As part of Improvements to IFRSs issued in 2010, IFRS 3 was

Business Combinations amended to clarify that the measurement choice regarding non-
controlling interests at the date of acquisition is only available
in respect of non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and that entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation. All other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition-
date fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by
other Standards. In addition, IFRS 3 was amended to provide
more guidance regarding the accounting for share-based
payment awards held by the acquiree’s employees. Specifically,
the amendments specify that share-based payment transactions
of the acquiree that are not replaced should be measured in
accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date (‘market-based measure’).

The application of the amendments has had no effect on the

amounts reported in the current and prior years because the Bank
has no business combination.

7



Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi

Notes to financial statements
31 December 2011

(Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

(continued)

()] New and Revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the financial statements

(continued)

Amendments to IAS 32
Classification of Rights
Issues

Amendments to IFRIC 14
Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing
- Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments

Improvements to IFRSs
issued in 2010

The amendments address the classification of certain rights
issues denominated in a foreign currency as either equity
instruments or as financial liabilities. Under the amendments,
rights, options or warrants issued by an entity for the holders to
acquire a fixed number of the entity's equity instruments for a
fixed amount of any currency are classified as equity instruments
in the financial statements of the entity provided that the offer is
made pro rata to all of its existing owners of the same class of its
non-derivative equity instruments. Before the amendments to
IAS 32, rights, options or warrants to acquire a fixed number of
an entity's equity instruments for a fixed amount in foreign
currency were classified as derivatives. The amendments require
retrospective application.

The application of the amendments has had no effect on the
amounts reported in the current and prior yvears because the Bank
has not issued instruments of this nature.

IFRIC 14 addresses when refunds or reductions in future
contributions should be regarded as available in accordance with
paragraph 58 of IAS 19; how minimum funding requirements
might affect the availability of reductions in future contributions;
and when minimum funding requirements might give rise to a
liability. The amendments now allow recognition of an asset in
the form of prepaid minimum funding contributions. The
application of the amendments has not had material effect on the
Banl's financial statements.

The Interpretation provides guidance on the accounting for the
extinguishment of a financial liability by the issue of equity
instruments. Specifically, under IFRIC 19, equity instruments
issued under such arrangement will be measured at their fair
value, and any difference between the carrying amount of the
financial Liability extinguished and the consideration paid will be
recognized in profit or loss.

The application of IFRIC 19 has had no effect on the amounts
reported in the current and prior years because the Bank has not
entered into any transactions of this nature.

Except for the amendments to IFRS 3 and IAS 1 described
earlier in section (a), and (b), the application of Improvements to
IFRSs issued in 2010 has not had any material effect on amounts
reported in the financial statements.




Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi

Notes to financial statements
31 December 2011
(Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(continued)

(c) New and Revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Bank has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets; Offsetting of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Taxes — Recovery of Underlying Assets

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

TAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statement

IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

TFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting of Financial

Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to IFRS 7 increase the disclosure requirements for tramsactions involving
transfers of financial assets. These amendments are intended to provide greater transparency
around risk exposures when a financial asset is transferred but the transferor retains some level of
continuing exposure in the asset. The amendments also require disclosures where transfers of
financial assets are not evenly distributed throughout the period.

The Bank management does not anticipate that these amendments to IFRS 7 will have a significant
effect on the Bank’s disclosures. However, if the Bank enters into other types of transfers of
financial assets in the future, disclosures regarding those transfers may be affected.

The amendments to IFRS 7 require an entity to disclose information about rights of offset and
related agreements for financial instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement or
similar arrangement. The new disclosures are required for annual or interim periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013,

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 amended in October 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

. IFRS 9 requires all recognized financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortized cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
accounting periods.




Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi

Notes to financial statements
31 December 2011
(Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(continued)

(¢) New and Revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

. The most significant effect of IFRS 9 regarding the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities relates to the accounting for changes in the fair value of a financial
liability (designated as at fair value through profit or loss) attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that Liability. Specifically, under IFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under IAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as at
fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

IFRS 9 was amended to defer the mandatory effective date of both the 2009 and 2010 versions of
IFRS 9 to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015. Prior to the amendments,
application of IFRS 9 was mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The
amendments continue to permit early application. The amendments modify the existing
comparative transition disclosures in IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. Instead of requiring restatement of
comparative financial statements, entities are either permitted or required to provide modified
disclosures on transition from IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to
IFRS 9 depending on the entity’s date of adoption and whether the entity chooses to restate prior
periods.

The Bank management anticipates that IFRS 9 will be adopted in the Bank's financial statements
for the annual period beginning 1 Janmary 2015 and that the application of IFRS 9 may have
significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the Bank's financial assets and financial
liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

In May 2011, a package of five Standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures was issued, including IFRS 10, IFRS 11, TFRS 12, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and JAS
28 (asrevised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five Standards are described below.

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that deal
with consolidated financial statements. SIC-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities has been
withdrawn upon the issuance of IFRS 10. Under IFRS 10, there is only one basis for consolidation,
which is control. In addition, IFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that contains three
clements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the investor's returns. Extensive guidance has been added in IFRS 10 to deal with
complex scenarios.

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. IFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement
of which two or more parties have joint control should be classified. SIC-13 Jointly Controlled
Entities — Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers has been withdrawn upon the issuance of
IFRS11.

10



Fibabanka Anconim Sirketi

Notes to financial statements
31 December 2011
(Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(continued)

(¢) New and Revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Under IFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending
on the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under IAS 31, there are
three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under IFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using the equity method
of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under IAS 31 can be accounted for using the
equity method of accounting or proportionate accounting,.

IFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that have interests in subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in IFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Early
adoption is permitted provided that all of these five standards are applied early at the same time.

The Bank management anticipates that these five standards will have no material effect on the
Bank's financial statements.

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about
fair value measurements. The Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad;
it applies to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which other
IFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements in IFRS 13 are more
extensive than those required in the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial instruments
only under IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by IFRS 13 to cover all
assets and liabilities within its scope.

IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with early adoption
permitted.

The Bank Management anticipate that IFRS 13 will be adopted in the Bank's financial statements
for the annual period beginning 1 January 2013 and that the application of the new Standard may
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and result in more extensive disclosures in
the financial statements.

The amendments to IAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to IAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a) items
that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same basis.

11



Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi

Notes to financial statements
31 December 2011
(Currency-Thousands of Twrkish Lira (TL))

Application of new and revised Imternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(continued)

(c) New and Revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

The amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012, The
presentation of items of other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.

The amendments to IAS 12 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
The directors anticipate that the application of the amendments to TAS 12 in future accounting
periods may result in adjustments fo the amounts of deferred tax liabilities recognized in prior
years regarding the Bank's investment properties of which the carrying amounts are presumed to be
recovered through sale. However, the directors have not yet performed a detailed analysis of the
impact of the application of the amendments and hence have not yet quantified the extent of the
impact.

The amendments to IAS 19 change the accounting for defined benefit plans and termination
benefits. The most significant change relates to the accounting for changes in defined benefit
obligations and plan assets. The amendments require the recognition of changes in defined benefit
obligations and in fair value of plan assets when they occur, and hence eliminate the ‘corridor
approach’ permitted under the previous version of IAS 19 and accelerate the recognition of past
service costs. The amendments require all actuarjal gains and losses to be recognized immediately
through other comprehensive income in order for the net pension asset or liability recognized in the
statement of financial position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus.

The amendments to IAS 19 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
and require retrospective application with certain exceptions. The directors anticipate that the
amendments to TAS 19 will be adopted in the Bank's financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 January 2013 and that the application of the amendments to IAS 19 may have impact
on amounts reported in respect of the Banks® defined benefit plans. However, the directors have
not yet performed a detailed analysis of the impact of the application of the amendments and hence
have not yet quantified the extent of the impact.

On 19 October 2011 the TASB issued an Interpretation, IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine, clarifying the requirements for accounting for stripping costs in the
production phase of a surface mine. The Interpretation clarifics when production stripping should
lead to the recognition of an asset and how that asset should be measured, both initially and in
subsequent periods. The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013 with early adoption permitted.

The amendments to IAS 32 are intended to clarify existing application issues relating to the

offsetting rules and reduce the level of diversity in current practice. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
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Notes to financial statements
31 December 2011
(Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (IL))

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

The Bank maintains its books of account and prepares its statutory financial statements in
Turkish Lira (“TL”) in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards as promulgated by the
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA”) and also the Turkish Commercial Code
(collectively, “Turkish GAAP™).

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) and are based on the statutory records, with adjustments and
reclassifications for the purpose of fair presentation in accordance with IFRS. The Bank adopted
all IFRS, which were mandatory as of 31 December 2011. The accompanying financial statements
are authorized for issue by the directors on 13 March 2012.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following:

e derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value
» financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value

IAS 29 requires that financial statements prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy
be stated in terms of the measuring unit current at the balance sheet date and the corresponding
figures for previous periods to be restated in the same terms. One characteristic that necessitates
the application of IAS 29 is a cumulative three-year inflation rate approaching or exceeding 100%.
Such cumulative rate in Turkey was 35.61% for the three years ended 31 December 2005 based
upon the producer price index announced by the Turkish State Institute of Statistics (“SIS™).

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in TL, which is the Bank’s functional currency. All
financial information presented in TL has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing these financial statements, the significant judgments made by management in
applying the Bank’s accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the
same as those that applied to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December
2010.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are
described in notes 3.fto 3.t.
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Notes to financial statements
31 December 2011
(Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Reclassification of Comparative Information

If the presentation or classification of the financial statements is changed in the current year, in
order o maintain consistency, financial statements of prior years are also reclassified in line with
the related changes.

In 2010, unearned loan commission income amounting to TL 4,848 recognized in other liabilities
has been offset with loans and advances to customers and TL 1,161 saving deposits insurance
expense has been reclassified from other expenses to interest expense in order to comply with the
current year presentation.

Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements of the Bank are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the
accompanying financial statements, the results and financial position of the Bank is expressed in
Turkish Lira, which is the functional currency of the Bank, and the presentation currency for the
accompanying financial statements.

Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the balance sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items are included in profit or loss for the period. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognized directly in equity. For such non-monetary items, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognized directly in equity.

In order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Bank enters into forward
contracts, swaps and options (see below for details of the Bank’s accounting policies in respect of
such derivative financial instruments).

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010 foreign currency assets and liabilities of the Bank
are mainly in US Dollar, Euro and CHF. Foreign currency translation rates used by the Bank as of
respective year-ends are as follows:

EUR /TL USD/TL CHF /TL
31 December 2010 2.0694 1.5487 1.6550
31 December 2011 2.4438 1.8889 2.0062
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Notes to financial statements
31 December 2011
(Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (L))

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment in value. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Vehicles 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment and 4-50 years
others

Leasehold improvements Lease period

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each year end.

The carrying values of premises and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets
of cash generating units are written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
defined as the amount that is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Impairment losses are recognized in the income statement. There is no impairment recorded related
to premises and equipment.

An item of premises and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
{calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset} is included in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognized.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired are capitalized at cost. Following initial recognition intangible assets arc
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over the best estimate of
their useful lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. There is no impairment recorded related to intangible assets. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by
changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting
estimates.

The Bank amortizes intangible assets with a finite life on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of 3 to 10 years. There are no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.
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Noftes to financial statements
31 December 2011 -
(Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (IL))

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly
liquid investments which their maturities are three months or less from date of acquisition and that
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Financial Instruments
Financial Assets

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets. When financial assets are recognized initially, they are measured at fair value. The
Bank determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

The Bank recognizes all regular way purchases and sales of financial assets on the settlement date
i.e. the date that the asset is delivered. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame gencrally established by
regulation or convention in the market place. Changes in fair value of assets to be received during
the period between the trade date and the settlement date are accounted for in the same way as the
acquired assets i.e. for assets carried at cost or amortized cost; change in value is not recognized.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified as held-for-trading are included in this category. Trading securities are
securities, which were either acquired for generating a profit from short term fluctuations in price
or dealer’s margin, or are securities included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short term profit
taking exist. Derivatives are also classified as held-for-trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on investments held-for-trading are recognized in
income.

Held-to-maturity investuents

Non-derivative financial asscts with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity where
management has both the intent and the ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity. Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this
classification. The Bank does not have any financial asset classified as held to maturity.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Bank provides money, goods or services
directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. Except for loans and advances
designated as hedged item in qualifying hedging relationships and carried at fair value, such assets
are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any impairment in value,
Gains and losses are recognized in income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or
impaired, as well as through the amortization process. Interest earned on such loans and
receivables is reported as interest income.
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Notes to financial statements
31 December 2011
{Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial Assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. After initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, Gains or losses on
remeasurement to fair value are recognized as a separate component of equity until the investment
is derecognized, or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at the time the cumulative
gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the income statement. However, interest
calculated on available-for-sale financial assets using effective interest method is reported as
interest income.

For investments that are traded in an active market, fair value is determined by reference to stock
exchange or current market bid prices, at the close of business on the balance sheet date. For
investments where there is no market price or market price is not an indicator of the fair value of
the instrument, fair value is determined by reference to the current market value of substantially the
same instrument, by recent arm's length transactions, by discounted cash flow analysis or through
other valuation techniques commonly used. As of 31 December 2011, total amount of financial
assets available for sale is TL 15,844 (31 December 2010: TL 14), of which TL 15,830 comprises
of foreign currency company bonds with maturity more than 1 year (31 December 2010: None).

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortized cost

In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Bank
makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated amounts recoverable from a portfolio of loans and individual loans.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Bank about the following loss events:
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Notes to financial statements
31 December 2011
{Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Significant accounting pelicies (continued)
Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Assets (continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obliger;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments by
more than 90 days;

- the Bank granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

- observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the
decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the group, including:

n adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers; or
= national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assefs in the
group. :

All loans with principal and/or interest overdue for more than 90 days are considered as impaired
and individually assessed.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured based
on the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the estimated recoverable amount,
determined by the net present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
original effective interest rate. The estimated recoverable amount of a collateralized financial asset
is measured based on the amount that is expected to be realized from foreclosure less costs for
obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not the foreclosure is probable. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is
recognized in the income statement.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group
of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is
collectively assessed for impairment.

Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. The
calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset
reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.
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Notes to financial statements
31 December 2011
(Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial Assets (continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of similar credit risk characteristics (i.e., on the basis of the Bank’s grading process that considers
asset type, industry, geographical location, collateral type, past-due status and other relevant
factors). Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for Banks of such
assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are
estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Bank to
reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

A write off is made when all or part of a loan is deemed uncollectible or in the case of debt
forgiveness. Such loans are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and
the amount of the loss has been determined. Write offs are charged against previously established
allowances and reduce the principal amount of a loan. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are included in income.

The total carrying value of such loans and receivables as of 31 December 2011 is TL 2,099,873 (31
December 2010: TL 629,993) net of impairment allowance of TL 8,110 (31 December 2010: TL
12,513).

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that
is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of its recoverable amount.

Assets carvied at fair value

Available-for-sale equity investments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost. If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortization) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized in profit or loss, is transferred
from equity to the income statement. Impairment losses recognized in the income statement on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through income statement.

Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss; if the
increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial Assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Bank
recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Bank continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or
other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit or loss where the financial liability
is either held for trading or it is designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss
recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any
interest paid on the financial liability and is included in ‘other gains/losses’ line in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings and deposits, are initially measured at fair value,
net of transaction costs,

All deposits and borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of consideration received less
directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition interest-bearing deposits and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition. Gains or losses are recognized in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the amortization process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Bank derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.
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Notes to financial statements
31 Decentber 2011
(Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial Instruments (continued)
Off- balance sheet commitments and contingencies

The Bank deals with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business such as letters of
guarantee, letters of credit, pre-financing loans, etc. The Bank’s exposure to credit losses arising
from these instruments is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments.

Derivative Financial Instruments
Derivatives Held for Trading

The Bank’s derivative transactions mainly consist of foreign currency swaps, foreign currency
options, forward foreign currency contracts and cross currency swaps. The Bank does not have
any embedded derivatives separated from the host contract.

In accordance with IAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement", forward
foreign currency purchase/sale contracts, swaps and options are classified as "hedging purpose"
and "trading purpose" transactions. Derivatives are initially recognized at cost including the
transaction costs. Also, the assets and liabilities arising from the derivative transactions are recorded
as off-balance sheet items at their contractual notional amounts. The derivative transactions held
for trading are valued at fair-value using market prices or pricing models subsequent to initial
recognition and are presented in “derivatives held for trading purpose”. Gains and losses arising
from a change in the fair value are recognized in the income statement.

Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

The Bank applied fair value hedging until November 30, 2010, which principally consisted of
interest rate swaps that are used to hedge changes in the fair value of fixed-rate loans and advances
to customers due to changes in market interest rates.

The Bank discontinues hedge accounting when it is determined that: a derivative is not, or has
ceased to be, highly effective as a hedge; when the derivative expires, or is sold, terminated, or
exercised; when the hedged item matures or is sold or repaid; or when a forecast transaction is no
longer deemed highly probable. The fair value differences on loans calculated till the cease date of
hedging has been started to be amortized. As of 31 December 2011, the remaining fair value
difference on loans is derivative financial assets used for hedging purposes is TL 14,726 (31
December 2010: TL 17,283).
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Notes to financial statements
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{Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial Instruments (continued)

Netting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the Hability simultaneously.

Fair value considerations

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arms length transaction. Fair value is best evidenced by a
market price, being the amount obtainable from the sale or payable on the acquisition, of a
financial instrument in an active market, if one exists.

Various financial instruments are accounted for at fair value. Other financial instruments are
accounted at amortized cost but disclosure is required of fair value for comparison purposes,
wherever practicable.

Due to economic conditions and volatility or low trading volumes in markets, the Bank may be
unable, in certain cases, to find a market price in an actively traded market. In such cases, other
measures of fair value are considered. These include comparisons with similar financial
instruments that do have active markets. As there are wide ranges of valuation techniques, it may
be inappropriate to compare the Bank’s fair value information to independent markets or to other
financial institutions’ fair value information.

For certain financial assets and hiabilities carried at cost, the fair values are assumed not to differ
significantly from cost, due to the short-term nature of the items involved or because interest rates
applicable to such items are variable at such short notice that interest income or expense on such
items would not differ significantly from market rates.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate that value.

Central Bank accounts and balances with banks: The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of
fair value.

Securities investments: Fair value is estimated using quoted market prices wherever applicable.

Derivatives: Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent
market transactions, to the extent publicly available, and the fair value of financial instruments that
are not quoted in active markets are determined by using valuation techniques. If there is a
valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the instrument and that
technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market
transactions, the Bank uses that technique. To the extent practical, models use only observable
data, however areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilitics and correlations
require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
reported fair value of financial instruments.

In the absence of forward foreign currency market rates and reliable forward rate estimations in a
volatile market, values of foreign currency swap transactions are determined by comparing forward
rates with contractual forward rates discounted to the balance sheet date with the current market
rates. The resulting gain or loss is reflected to the income statement. In determination of the fair
values of interest rate swaps, discounted values calculated using the fixed and floating interest rates
between the transaction date and repricing date are used.
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Notes to financial statements
31 December 2011
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Fair value considerations (continued)

Loans and Receivables: Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Bank provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. Such
assets are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any impairment in
value. Gains and losses are recognized in income when the loans and receivables are derecognized
or impaired, as well as through the amortization process. Interest earned on such loans and
receivables is reported as interest income.

Management believes that the risk factors embedded in the initial interest rates and subsequent rate
changes along with the related allowances for uncollectibility and assessment of risks associated
with the loan book result in a fair valuation of loans.

Deposits: Estimated fair value of demand deposits, saving deposits and interbank deposits is the
amount payable on demand at the reporting date.

Borrowings: Borrowings have interest rates that are fixed on an entry value basis but may be
subject to fluctuation in accordance with prevailing interest rates in the market. Interest-bearing
borrowings and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received. Interests on borrowings are
accounted for on an accrual basis and are added to the carrying amount of instruments to the extent
they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Non-current assets held for sale

Certain non-current assets primarily related to the collateral collected on non-performing loans are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the
sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal Bank) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee Benefits
Employee Termination Benefits

In accordance with existing social legislation in Turkey, the Bank is required to make lump-sum
termination indemnities to each employee who has completed over one year of service with the
Bank and whose employment is terminated due to retirement or for reasons other than resignation
or misconduct.

Such defined benefit plan is unfunded since there is no funding requirement in Turkey. In
calculating the related liability to be recorded in the financial statements for this defined benefit
plan, the Bank makes assumptions and estimation relating to the discount rate to be used, turnover
of employees, future change in salaries/limits, etc.

The principal actuarial assumptions used at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010 are as
follows;

31 December 31 December

2011 2010
% %

Discount rate 10.0 10.0
Inflation rate 5.1 5.1

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the statement of operations in the year they occur.

The computation of the liability is predicated upon retirement pay ceiling announced by the
Government. The ceiling amount at 31 December 2011 was TI. 2,731.85 (full basis) (31 December
2010: TL 2,517.01 (full basis)).

Other Contributions

The Bank pays contributions to Social Security Funds on a mandatory basis. There are no other
liabilities related to employee benefits to be provisioned.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases

The Bank as Lessee

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. These include rent agreements of branch and head office premises,
which are cancellable subject to a period of notice. Related payments are recognized as an expense
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period expires, any payment required to be
made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognized as an expense in the period in which the
termination takes place.

Income and Expensé Recognition

Interest income and expenses are recognized in the income statement for all interest bearing
instruments on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is
a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, throughout the period to the next repricing date. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties in the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. '

Fees and commissions are generally recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided. Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together
with related direct costs) and recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest rate of the loan.
Commission and fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction
for a third party are recognized on completion of the underlying transaction. Portfolio and other
management advisory and service fees are recognized based on the applicable service contracts.
Asset management fees and custody service fees that are continuously provided over an extended
period of time are recognized ratably over the period service is provided.

Fee for bank transfers and other banking transaction services are recorded as income when
collected.

Net trading income comprises gains minus losses related to financial assets and liabilities held for
trading and includes all realised and unrealised fair value changes and foreign exchange
differences.

25



)

)

Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi

Noftes to financial statements
31 December 2011
(Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income Tax

Tax expense/ (income) is the aggregate amount included in the determination of net profit or loss
for the period in respect of current and deferred taxes.

Current fax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred rax

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that, in the management’s judgment, it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognized to the extent it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

Income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the
income statement.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Subsequent events
Post-balance sheet events that provide additional information about the Bank’s position at the

balance sheet dates {(adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post-balance sheet
events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.
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Segment reporting

A scgment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to

transactions with any of the Bank’s other components.

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Bank’s business segments. The Bank comprises

the Retail and Commercial Banking and Treasury as main business segments.

Major financial statement items according to business lines:

Retail and
Commercial
Treasury Banking
31 December 2011
Operating income 3,394 §7,408
Profit before tax 2,673 25,773
Tax charge
Net profit
Segment assets 105,542 2,326,595
Unallocated assets
Total assets
Segment liabilities 62,050 2,041,357
Unallocated liabilities
Equity
Total liabilities and equity
Retail and
Commercial
Treasury Banking
31 December 2010
Operating income 3,896 26,557
Loss before tax 2,181 (20,634)
Tax benefit
Net loss
Segment assets 183,985 671,499
Unallocated assets
Total assets
Segment liabilities 138,990 637,395
Unallocated liabilities
Equity

Total liabilities and equity
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Total

90,8302
28,446
(3,102)

25,344

2,432,137
47,460

2,479,597
2,103,407
18,446
357,744

2,479,597

Total

30,453
(18,453)
653

(17,800)

855,484
36,932

892,416
776,385

6,019
110,012

892,416
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Financial risk management
Introduction and overview
The Bank has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

credit risk
liquidity risk
market risks
operational risks

This note presents information about the Bank’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Bank’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Bank’s management
of capital.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Bank’s
risk management framework. Risk Committee of the Bank is responsible for developing and
monitoring Bank risk management policies in their specified areas. All Board committees have
both executive and non-executive members and report regularly to the Board of Directors on their
activities.

The Bank’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Bank, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. The Bank, through its directives management standards, procedures
and regular frainings aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which
all employees understand their roles and responsibilities.

The Bank Audit Committee is responsible to monitor the efficiency and adequacy of the Bank's
Internal Control Systems framework on behalf of the Board of Directors. The Bank Audit
Committee is assisted in these functions by Risk Management; Internal Control & Compliance and
Internal Audit departments.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Bank’s loans
and advances to customers and other banks. For risk management reporting purposes, the Bank
considers and consolidates all elements of credit risk exposure (such as individual obligor default
risk, country and sector risk).

The Bank’s counterparty credit exposure at the balance sheet date from financial instruments held
or issued for trading purposes is represented by the fair value of instruments with a positive fair
value at that date, as recorded on the balance sheet.

The risk that counterparties to trading instruments might default on their obligations is monitored
on an ongoing basis. To manage the level of credit risk, the Bank deals with counterparties of good
credit standing only.

The Bank set rating, model development and validation standards in order to estimate, identify
measure, monitor, dispose, reduce and manage the credit risk. These standards have been
developed to determine proper credit customers reliable in terms of credit policy. Credit Risk
Reports and concentration and risk limits concerning the Bank's loan portfolio are reviewed
periodically by Risk Management Department.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Collateral policy

interests over property, other registered securities over assets, and guarantees.

" The Bank holds collateral against loans and advances to customers in the form of mortgage

The breakdown of cash loans and advances to customers by type of collateral is as follows:

31 December 2011
Non-
Cash Loans Performing Performing Total
Secured loans: 2,063,810 15,863 2,079,673
Secured by cash collateral 50,918 -- 50,918
Secured by mortgages 703,787 11,851 715,638
Secured by government institutions or government
securities 24 - 24
Other collateral (pledge on assets, vehicle,
corporate and personal guarantees, promissory
notes) 1,309,081 4,012 1,313,093
Unsecured loans 27,805 505 28,310
Total Cash Loans 2,091,615 16,368 2,107,983
31 December 2010
Non-
Cash Loans Performing Performing Total
Secured loans: 603,511 17,184 620,695
Secured by cash collateral 21,007 - 21,007
Secured by mortgages 499,491 15,980 515471
Secured by government institutions or government
securities 281 - 281
Other collateral (pledge on assets, vehicle,
corporate and personal guarantees, promissory
notes) 82,732 1,204 83,936
Unsecured loans 17,775 4,036 21,811
Total Cash Loans 621,286 21,220 042,506
The breakdown of non-cash loans by type of collateral is as follows:
31 December 31 December
Non-cash loans 2011 2010
Secured loans: 216,236 77,081
Secured by cash collateral 1,838 214
Secured by mortgages 21,158 - 2,947
Other collateral (pledge on assets, corporate and personal
guarantees, promissory notes) 193,240 73,220
Unsecured loans: 12,140 -
Total non-cash loans 228,376 77,081
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Collateral policy (continued)

An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other security enhancements held against loans and
advances to customers is shown below (*):

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Car 76,720 13,480
Cash and bank deposits 54,125 23916
Mortgage 1,516,580 1,127,635
Other 631,545 167,990
Total 2,278,970 1,333,021

(*) The fair value of the collateral is not capped with the respective outstanding loan balance.
Sectoral concentration of loans and advances to customers

The Bank monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector. An analysis of concentrations of
performing loans and advances to customers is shown below:

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Retail 270,448 309,775
Manufacturing 678,874 151,149
Service 762,071 94,180
Construction 289,794 65,079
Agriculture and stockbreeding 35,119 1,103
Other 55,309 --
Total performing loans and advances to

customers 2,091,615 621,286

Maximum exposure to credit risk

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the financial
statements;

Gross maximum exposure 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Balances with Central Banks (including reserve 227,281 41,523
deposits)

Deposits with and loans due from banks and other

finanecial institutions 18,903 73,346
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 54,132 96,869
Loans and receivables 2,099,873 629,993
Total 2,400,189 841,731
Contingent liabilities 228,376 77,081
Commitments ‘ 62,018 101,745
Total 290,394 178,826
Total eredit risk exposure 2,690,583 1,020,557
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Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit quality of loans and receivables as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 are as follows;

Neither past Past due but Ind.1v1du-ally
due nor . . impaired Tatal
. . not impaired
31 December 2011 impaired (gross)
Loans and receivables
Commercial 1,814,826 6,341 13,944 1,835,111
Consumer 230,704 39,255 2,393 272,352
Credit Cards 482 7 31 520
Total 2,046,012 45,603 16,368 2,107,983
Neither past Past due but Ind.1v1du.ally
due nor . . impaired Total
. . not impaired
31 December 2010 impaired (gross)
Loans and receivables
Commercial 309,314 2,306 17,215 328,835
Consumer 297,990 11,117 3,956 313,063
Credit Cards 548 11 49 608
Total 607,852 13,434 21,220 642,506

Carrying amount per class of loans and receivables assets whose terms have been renegotiated:

31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Loans and receivables
Commercial 12,272 2,699
Consumer 4,942 2,267
Total 17,214 4,960

Aging analysis of past due but not impaired loans per class of financial instruments:

Less than 31-60 61-90
31 December 2011 31 days days days Total
Loans and receivables
Commercial 5,054 025 362 6,341
Consumer 27,649 8,463 3,150 39,262
Total 32,703 9.388 3,512 45,603
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Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Less than 31-60 61-90

31 December 2010 31 days days days Total
Loans and receivables '

Commercial 4 2,250 52 2,306

Consumer 017 8,235 1,963 11,117

Credit cards -- 11 -- 11
Total 921 10,496 2,017 13,434
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the potential inability both to finance assets over appropriate times to
maturity and at suitable rates and to liquidate portfolio positions at the proper time and at
reasonable prices.

The Bank maintains liquidity facilities with Central Bank of Turkey and other banks that are
available immediately when needed. The Bank strives to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of liabilities with a range of maturities. Liquidity risk is
continuously assessed by identifying and monitoring changes in funding required to meet business
goals and targets set in terms of the overall strategy.

The table below shows the undiscounted cash flows on the Bank’s financial liabilities on the basis
of their carliest possible contractual maturity. The gross nominal inflow / (outflow) disclosed in the
above table represents the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to the principal and interest
on the financial liability. The disclosure for derivatives shows a net amount for derivatives that are
net settled, but a gross inflow and outflow amount for derivatives that have simultaneous gross
settlement.

Less 3
Gross than months More

Carrying nominal one 1-3 to 1 1-5  than5
31 December 2011 amount  outflow  Demand month months  year years  years
Non-derivative liabilities
Deposits from banks 45,547 45,615 751 41,062 3,802 -- - -
Deposits from customers 2,011,789 2,046,157 106,954 906,601 736,407 296,195 - -
Borrowings from banks 29,756 30,179 - 7,459 20,401 2,319 - --

2,087,092 2,121,951 107,705 955,122 760,610 298,514 -
Derivative liabilities

Held for trading 16,315 20,712 . 6,016 5,030 6,123 3,543 --
16,315 20,712 -~ 606 5030 6,123 3,543 --
Total 2,103,407 2,142,663 107,705 961,138 765,640 304,637 3,543 -
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Financial risk management (continued)

Liguidity risk (continued)
Gross More
Carrying nominal Less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 than 5
31 December 2010 amount  outflow Demand onemonth months tol year years years
Non-derivative liabilities
Deposits from banks 114,708 115,634 844 -- 114,790 - - -
Deposits from _
customers 635,560 637,745 50,591 475,398 110,394 1,362 - --
Borrowings from banks 2,574 2,592 - - 2,029 563 -- -
752,842 755,971 51,435 475,398 227,213 1,925 - -
Derivative liabilities
Held for trading 23,543 33,379 -- 10,173 2,702 4,758 13,942 1,804
23,543 33,379 - 10,173 2,702 4,758 13,942 1,804
Total 776,385 789,350 51,435 485,571 229,915 6,683 13,942 1,804
Maturity analysis of balance sheet items is as follows:
Uptol 1to3 3 months Over
As at 31 December 2011 Demand Month  Months to1year 1year Unallocated Total
Assets:
Cash and balances with the
Central bank 117,507 125,878 - - - -- 243,385
Deposits with and loans due
from banks
and other financial institutions 18,903 - -- - - - 18,903
Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss - 7,173 1,970 6,873 38,116 - 54,132
Available-for-sale financial
assets - -- - - 15,830 14 15,844
Loans and receivables - 637,130 319,945 525,707 608,833 8,258 2,099,873
Other assets - - - - - 47.460 47,460
Total assets 136,410 770,181 321,915 532,580 662,779 55,732 2,479,597
Liabilities:
Deposits from other banks 751 41,011 3,785 - - -- 45,547
Customers' deposits 106,954 902418 724,851 277,566 - -- 2,011,789
Financial liabilities at fair value .
through profit and loss -- -- 1,414 4664 10,237 - 16,315
Funds borrowed - 7,452 20,026 2,278 -- -- 29,756
Other liabilities and equity -- 2,982 -- -- - 373,208 376,190
Total liabilities 107,705 953,863 750,076 284,508 10,237 373,208 2,479,597
Net liquidity gap 28,705 (183,682) (428,161) 248,072 652,542 (317.476) --
As at 31 December 2010
Total assets 28,808 184,395 56,308 143,006 434,239 45,660 892,416
Total Habilities 51,435 487,735 228240 11952 - 113,054 892,416
Net ligquidity gap (22,627) (303,340) (171,932) 131,054 434,239 (67,394) -—
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk

The Bank’s operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that interest-
earning assets (including investments) and interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice at different
times or in differing amounts. For floating rate assets and liabilities, the Bank is also exposed to
basis risk, which is the difference in repricing characteristics of the floating rate indices.

The Bank has also established market risk management operations and has taken the necessary
precautions in order to hedge market risk within its financial risk management purposes, in
accordance with the Communiqué on "Internal Control and Risk Management Systems of Banks”
announced in the Official Gazette dated 1 November 2006.

The following activities are carried out in order to the Bank's market risk identification,
measurement, reporting and monitoring to ensure compliance with the laws of the BRSA, to
minimize the losses resulting from the Bank's market risk, to improve the processes and standards.

The position that the Bank carries cannot exceed the legal limits. In addition, within the scope of
Trading Policy, Value at Risk limit is determined for trading portfolio of the Bank. Necessary
infrastructure is made by the Risk Management Department in order to provide the compliance
with these limits following on a daily basis. Compliance control and reporting within the limits set
will be made in the year 2012.
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5 Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Market risk (continued)
(i)  Interest rate risk

“Interest rate risk™ is the probability of loss due to changes in interest rates depending on the
Bank’s position regarding the interest bearing financial instruments. Interest rate risk arises as a
result of timing differences on the re-pricing of assets and liabilities, changes in correlation of
interest rates between different financial instruments and, unexpected changes in the shape and
slope of yield curves. Exposure to interest rate movements arises when there is a mismatch
between rate sensitive assets and liabilities.

Within the scope of Asset and Liability Management Policy, Bank's assets and liabilities are re-
pricing according to the remaining maturities and applying the determined interest rate shocks the
change in net economic value is calculated.

With the Interest Rate Risk Reports and stress tests on the interest rate risk of the Bank, willing to
relocate risk levels are tested due to the sensitivity of the risk levels in the presence of crisis
scenarios and keeping them under control is provided.

Interest rate gap analysis
The following tables indicate the periods in which financial assets and liabilities reprice as at 31
December 2011 and 31 December 2010;

Less than Between three Non-
three and twelve Over one interest
2011: months months year bearing Total
Financial assets
Cash and balances with Central Bank - — - 243,385 243,385
Due from banks - - - 18,903 18,903
Financial assets at FVTPL 21,209 6,999 25,924 - 54,132
Financial assets available for sale - - 15,330 14 15,844
Loans and advances to customers (*) 1,037,950 460,289 593,376 -~ 2,091,615
Financial iabilities
Derivatives held for trading 1,414 11,664 3,237 - 16,315
Deposits from banks 44,796 -- -- 751 45,547
Deposits from customers 1,627,269 271,566 - 106,954 2,011,789
Borrowings from banks . 27.480 2,276 - - 29,756
{*) The loan balance excludes non-performing loans (net)
Less than Between three Non-
2010: three and twelve Over one interest
months months year bearing Total

Financial assets
Cash and balances with Central Bank - -- - 55,261 55,261
Due from banks 58,276 -- - 15,070 73,346
Financial assets at FVTPL 14,755 9,175 72,939 - 96,369
L.oans and advances to customers (*) 121,646 65,360 434,280 -- 621,286
Financial liabilities
Derivatives held for trading 13,472 10,071 - - 23,543
Deposits from banks 113,864 - “- 844 114,708
Deposits from customers 583,646 1,323 -- 50,591 635,560
Borrowings from banks 2,016 558 - - 2,574

(*) The loan balance excludes non-performing loans {net)
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Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table indicates the effective interest rates by major currencies for the major balance
sheet components as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010:

Other

EUR USD currencies TL
31 December 2011 % % % %
Cash and balances with the Central - -- - --
Bank
Financial assets available for sale - 0.58 - -
Loans and advances to banks - - -- -
Loans and advances to customers “7.67 7.20 6.12 15.96
Deposits from banks 0.74 3.93 -- 10.50
Borrowing from banks 3.69 3.22 - 7.55
Deposits from customers 4.17 4.23 1.28 11.53
31 December 2010
Cash and balances with the Central - - - -
Bank
Loans and advances to banks 021 0.10 - 4.50
Loans and advances te customers 6.99 7.29 6.14 13.68
Deposits from banks 3.81 - - -
Borrowing from banks 3.25 2.24 - 7.57
Deposits from customers 2.60 2.81 1.47 8.56

The management of interest rate risk against interest rate gap limits is supplemented by monitoring
the sensitivity of the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities to various standard and non-standard
interest rate scenarios. An analysis of the Bank’s sensitivity to a 100 basis points (bps) increase or
decrease in market interest rates shows that, when other variables kept constant, an increase in
interest rates by 1% leads to decrease in net interest income (“NIT”) by TL 4,045 (31 December
2010: 1% increase in interest rates affects NII positively by TL 3,307), on the other hand, a
decrease in interest rates by 1% leads to increase in net interest income by TL 3,774 (31 December
2010: : 1% decrease in interest rates affects NII negatively by TL 1,736) When interest rates are
decreased by 1%, interest rates which go below 0% are assumed as 0%.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Currency risk

The Bank is exposed to currency risk through transactions in foreign currencics. The main
measurement currencies of its foreign exchange operations are Euro and USD. As the currency in
which the Bank presents its financial statements is the Turkish Lira (TL), the financial statements
are affected by movements in the exchange rates between these currencics and TL. Currency risk is
managed through VaR limits.

At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Bank's foreign currency assets and liabilities
may be analyzed as follows (TL equivalents):

Total in Total in

EUR USD CHF Other 2011 2010
Foreign currency denominated
assets:
Cash and balances with
Central Bank 5,527 158,994 639 522 165,682 48,506
Due from banks 6,847 4,979 1,164 5,791 18,781 53,334
Financial assets at FVTPL 508 10,532 - -- 11,130 4,444
Financial assets available
for sale 14 15,830 - - 15,844 14
Loans and advances to
customers 309,244 654,674 194,572 -- 1,158,490 462,663
Other assets 90 08 -- 188 164

322,320 845,107 196,375 6,313 1,370,115 569,125
Foreign currency denominated

liabilities:

Derivatives held for trading - - - - - 4,553
Deposits from banks 12,579 19,881 -- 121 32,581 113,864
Borrowings from banks 27,003 1,638 - -- 28,641 2,138
Derivatives held for hedging

purposes - -- -- - - -
Deposits from customers 131,930 351,724 3,070 12,697 499,421 368,765
Other liabilities 1,891 2,803 - 100 4,794 485

173,403 376,046 3,070 12,918 565,437 489,805
Net on-balance sheet position 148,917 469,061 193,305  (6,605) 804,678 79,320
Net off-balance sheet position  (149,154)  (472,866) (194,796) 6,812  (810,004) (81,156)
Net position {(237) {3,805) (1,491) 207 (5,326) {1,836)

A 10 percent strengthening of the foreign currencies against TL would have decreased profit or
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. A 10 percent weakening of the foreign currencies against TL would
have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the
basis that all other variables remain constant.
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Profit or Profit or
loss Equity loss Equity
USD (165) (216) (221) --
EUR 24) - 42 -
CHF (149) -- 43 -
Other currencies 21 - (3) -
Total, net (317) (216) (183) -

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated
with the Bank’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors
other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory
requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behavior. Operational risks arise from
all of the Bank’s operations and are faced by all business areas.

The Bank practices policies in accordance with local regulations and in the context of best
international practices for operational risk identification, measurement, mitigation, reporting and
control of international best practices in the context of implementing.

Under the umbrella of operational risk, business continuity policies and procedures have been
created. Business impact analysis has been made to cnsure process based business continuity,
critical activities of the institution and necessary resources to carry out these activities have been
identified. Creation of infrastructure for the implementation of the plans is in progress through
business continuity plans.

Capital adequacy

The BRSA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Bank as a whole. In implementing
current capital requirements the BRSA requires the banks to maintain a prescribed ratio of
minimum 8% of total capital to total risk-weighted assets (12% for banks operating in offshore
markets). These ratios measure capital adequacy by comparing the Bank’s eligible capital with its
balance sheet assets, off-balance sheet commitments and market and other risk positions at
weighted amounts to reflect their relative risk. The Bank’s regulatory capital is analyzed into two
tiers:

- Tier 1 capital, which includes paid-in capital, share premium, legal reserves, retaincd earnings,
translation reserve and minority interest after deductions for goodwill and certain cost items.

- Tier 2 capital, which includes qualifying subordinated liabilities, general impairment allowances
and the element of the fair value reserve relating to unrealized gains on securities classified as
available-for-sale.

Banking operations are categorized as either trading book or banking book, and risk-weighted
assets are determined according to specified requirements that seek to reflect the varying levels of
risk attached to assets and off-balance sheet exposures. The Bank and its individually regulated
operations have complied with externally imposed capital requirements throughout the period and
its capital adequacy ratio calculated in accordance with local regulations is above the minimum
required ratio which is 8%.
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6 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The table below sets out the carrying amounts and fair values of the Bank’s financial assets and

financial liabilities:

31 December 2011

Cash and balances with the Central Bank

Due from banks

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets available for sale

Loans and advances to customers:
Measured at fair value
Measured at amortized cost

Derivatives held for trading

Deposits from banks

Borrowings from financial institutions
Deposits form customers

31 December 2010
Cash and balances with the Central Bank
Due from banks
Financial assets at FVTPL
Loans and advances to customers;
Measured at fair value
Measured af amortised cost

Derivatives held for trading

Deposits from banks

Borrowings from financial institutions
Deposits form customers

Financial Financial
instruments  Loans and instruments at  Total carrying
at fair value  receivables amortized cost amount Fair value
- 243,385 - 243,385 243,385
-- 18,903 -- 18,903 18,903
54,132 -- -- 54,132 54,132
15,830 -- 14 15,844 15,844
- 2,099,873 - 2,099,873 2,093,745
69,962 2,362,161 14 2,432,137 2,426,009
16,315 - - 16,315 16,315
- - 45,547 45,547 45,547
- - 29,756 29,756 29,756
— -- 2,011,789 2,011,789 2,011,789
16,315 - 2,087,092 2,103,407 2,103,407
Financial Financial
instruments  Loans and  instruments at  Total carrying
at fair value  receivables amortized cost amount Fair value
- 55,261 -- 55,261 55,261
-- 73,346 -- 73,346 73,346
96,869 - -- 96,869 96,869
-- 629,993 -- 629,993 626,972
96,869 758,600 - 855,469 852,448
23,543 - - 23,543 23,543
- - 114,708 114,708 114,708
- - 2,574 2,574 2,574
- - 635,560 635,560 635,560
23,543 - 752,842 776,385 776,385

Fair values of the financial assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost, except for loans and
advances to customers, are considered to approximate their respective carrying values due to their

short-term nature.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments {continued)

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

* Level 1: the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market
prices;

» Level 2: the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using
prices from observabie current market transactions; and

* Level 3: the fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities where there is no observable
market data. The fair value of derivative instruments, are calculated using quoted prices. Where
such prices are not available, estimate is made based on discounted cash flow analysis using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives.

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Level 1l Level2 Level3 Levell Level2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Financial assets at fair value through

profit and loss 36,319 17,813 -- 04,556 2,313 --
Financial assets available for sale 15,830 -- - - - —
Kinancial Liabilities

Derivatives held for trading -- 16,315 -- - 23,543 -

Derivatives used for hedging purposes - -- - -- -- --

There is no transition between Level 1 and Level 2 in the current year.

Cash and balances with Central Bank
At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, cash and balances with Central Bank are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2011 2010
Cash on hand 16,104 13,738
Reserve deposits at the Central Bank-free 101,402 5,411
Reserve deposits at the Central Bank-restricted 125,879 36,112
Cash and balances with the Central Bank 243,385 55,261
Due from other banks 18,903 73,346
Less: Reserve deposits-restricted (125,879) (36,112)
Less: Blocked deposits (4,555) (14,273)
Less: Obligations under repurchase commitments (6,831) --
Less: Interest income/expense accruals (net) 4 (29)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows 125,027 78,193
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Cash and balances with Central Bank (continued)

Reserve deposits at Central Bank represent the minimum cash reserve maintained with the Central
Bank of Turkey (the Central Bank), as required by the Turkish Banking Law, calculated on the
basis of customer deposits taken at the rates determined by the Central Bank. At 31 December
2011, reserve deposit ratios for Turkish Lira and foreign currency deposits are 5%-11% and 9%-
11% (31 December 2010: 6% and 11%). Restricted reserve deposits are not available for the daily
business of the Bank. As at 31 December 2011, interest rate for reserve deposits is nil for TL (31
December 2010: 0%).

Due from banks
At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, due from banks are as follows:
31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Turkish Lira 122 12
Foreign Currency 18,781 15,063
Demand 18,903 15,075
Turkish Lira -- 20,000
Foreign Currency - 38,271
Time -- 58,271
Total due from banks 18,903 73,346

As at 31 December 2011, there is no time deposit duc from banks (31 December 2010: Time
deposits due from banks mature in 4 days). (31 December 2010: Interest rates on time deposits due
from banks are 0.21%, 0.10% and 4.50% for EUR, USD and TL, respectively). The Bank has TL
4,555 blocked deposit accounts for the derivative contracts with the banks abroad (31 December
2010: TL 14,273).

Financial assets and liabilities

a) Financial assets
Financial assets at FVTPL

At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, financial asset at FVTPL are as follows:

31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Non- Non-

Pledged pledged Total Pledged pledged Total
Debt instruments 13,504 22,815 36,319 3,633 90,923 94,556
Government bonds 13,504 12,634 26,138 3,633 87,954 91,587
Eurobonds - 1,744 1,744 - 2,969 2,969
Corporate and bank bonds -- 8,437 8,437 - - -
Derivatives held for trading
purpose - 17,813 17,813 - 2,313 2.313
-Forwards -- 1,691 1,691 - 685 685
-Cross currency and interest ’
rate swaps - 163 163 - 352 352
-Currency swaps - 14875 14,875 -- 1,074 1,074
- Options -- 1,084 1,084 -- 202 202
Total financial assets at
FVTPL 13,504 40,628 54,132 3,633 93,236 96,869
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Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

a) Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

As of 31 December 2011, government securities with carrying values of TL 6,605 (31 December
2010: TL 3,633) are pledged to the Central Bank and the IMKB Takas ve Saklama Bankas:
Anonim Sirketi (Istanbul Stock Exchange Clearing and Custody Incorporation) for regulatory
requirements and as a guarantee for stock exchange and money market operations (31 December
2010: None). TL 6,899 of the pledged trading assets presented in the table above are those
financial assets that may be repledged or resold by counterparties (31 December 2010: None).

TL 12,278 (31 December 2010: TL 16,550) of debt securities have floating interest rates, whereas
the rest of the debt securities have fixed interest rates.

Average interest rates for TL, EUR and USD denominated financial assets at FVTPL are %10.74,
%4.95 and %6.19 respectively (31 December 2010: %8.40, %5.64 and %7.32 respectively).

Financial assets available for sale

31 December 31 December
2011 2010

Debt instruments '
Corporate and bank bonds 15,830 -
Equity instruments 14 14
Total financial assets available for sale 15,844 14

Available for sale debt securities have fixed interest rates with a %49.58 and are denominated in
USD (31 December 2010: None).

b) Financial liabilities at FVTPL
At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, derivative liabilities held for trading are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Derivatives held for trading
- Foreign currency swaps 644 11,445
- Cross currency and interest rate swaps 15,671 12,098
Total financial liabilities at FVTPL 16,315 23,543

42



Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi

Notes to financial statements
31 December 2011
(Currency-Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Loans and advances to customers

At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, loans and advances to customers are as follows:

Consumer loans and individual credit cards
Consumer loans-TL

Housing loans

Vehicle loans

General purpose loans

Others

Consumer loans-FC Indexed
Housing loans

Vehicle loans

General purpose loans
Individual credit cards-TL
With installment

Without installment
Individual credit cards-FC
With installment

Without installment
Personnel loans

General purpose loans
Overdraft account-TL

Commercial loans and corporate credit cards

Commercial loans with installments-TL
Housing loans

Vehicle loans

General purpose loans

Others

Commercial loans with installments-FC
Housing loans

Vehicle loans

General purpose loans

Others

Corporate credit cards-TL

With installment

Without installment

Overdraft accounts-TL

Spot loans

Revolving loans

Investment loans

Export loans

Other loans

Unearned comniission income
Total performing loans

Overdue loans

Total gross loans
Allowance for loan losses
Loans and advances to customers

43

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
21,798 39,626
992 252
20,784 11,140

- 1
219,845 247,988
9 447

8,509 12,792

461 552

26 5

318 154

309 435
273,051 313,392
66 97

3,250 1,244
108,955 44,600
- 3,043

10,817 13,869
1,379 2,521
152,639 110,527
- 1,575

2 2

4,106 1,425
416,722 69,107
389,286 45,092
349,760 2,167
171,275 17,245
216,764 228
1,825,021 312,742
(6,457) {4,848)
2,091,615 621,286
16,368 21,220
2,107,983 642,506
(8,110} (12,513)
2,099,873 629,993
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Loans and advances to customers (continued)

Movement in the allowance for specific and collective loan losses as at 31 December 2011 and 31

December 2010 is as follows:

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
Balance at 1 January 12,513 8,047
Write-off (*) (3,666) (121)
Allowance /(reversal) for the year (737) 4,587
Balance at year end 8,110 12,513

(*) 3,100 TL of the Bank’s full provision allocated non-performing loans were sold for 150 TL and afier the completion of the
procedures on 27 June 2011, the sale amount has been collected and those loans have been derecognized from non-performing loan
account. Moreover, the loans having the net book value of 12 TL, the gross value of 474 TL have been sold for 369 TL and the sale

amount has been recognized as revenue.

"The sources of the allowance for the year on loans and advances to customers are as follows:

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
Specific allowance/(reversal) (1,224) 3,631
Collective allowance/(reversal) 487 956
Allowance for loans and advances to customers {737) 4,587

Other assets

At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, other assets comprised the following items:

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
Non-current assets held for sale (*) 6,871 1,883
Prepaid rent 781 779
Investment funds receivables 157 1,269
Prepaid insurance 13 47
Other 1,192 866

9,014 4,844

(*) Certain non-current assets primarily related to the collateral collected on non-performing loans
are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale

transaction rather than through continuing use.

Movement of non-current assets heid for sale is as follows:

2011 2010
Opening balance, 1 January 1,883 -~
Additions 6,508 4,327
Disposal (1,520) (2,444)
Balance at 31 December 6,871 1,883
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Property and equipment
Movement in property and equipment during the year ended 31 December 2011 is as follows:

Furniture,
fixture and equipment

Balance at 1 January 2011:

Cost 22,306
Accumulated depreciation {15,180)
Opening net book amount 7,126
Additions 8,615
Disposals (net) (258)
Depreciation charge (3,360)
Balance at 31 December 2011: 12,123

Movement in property and equipment during the year ended 31 December 2010 is as follows:

Furniture,
fixture and equipment

Balance at 1 January 2010:

Cost 22,171
Accumulated depreciation (13,589)
Opening net book amount 8,582
Additions 478
Disposals (net) (136)
Depreciation charge " (1,798)
Balance at 31 December 2010: 7,126

Depreciation is calculated on the inflation indexed cost amounts for the property and equipment
acquired before 1 January 2006 and calculated on the historical cost amounts for the property and
equipment acquired after 1 January 2006.
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Intangible assets

Movement in intangible assets during the year ended 31 December 2011 is as follows:

Carrying
Software Other Value

Balance at 1 January 2011:
Cost 22,797 5,572 28,369
Accumulated amortization (20,785) (5,540) (26,325)
Opening net book amount 2,012 32 2,044
Additions 5,486 231 5,717
Disposals -- - --
Amortization charge (1,645) (41) (1,686)
Balance at 31 December 2011: 5,853 222 6,075

Movement in intangible assets during the year ended 31 December 2010 is as follows:

Carrying
Software Other Value

Balance at 1 January 2010:

Cost ‘ 21,736 5,572 27,308
Accumulated amortization (19,723) (5,519) (25,242)
Opening net book amount 2,013 53 2,066
Additions 1,061 -- 1,061
Disposals -- -- --
Amortization charge (1,062) (21) {1,083)
Balance at 31 December 2010: 2,012 32 2,044

Deposits from banks

At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, deposits from banks comprised the following items:

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Time deposits in FC 32,079 113,864
Time deposits in TL 5,886 --
Obligations under repurchase commitments from banks 6,831 -
Demand deposits in TL 502 344
Demand deposits in FC 249 --
45,547 114,708

At 31 December 2011, foreign currency denominated term deposits mature in 12 days (31
December 2010: 77 days). Interest rates on EUR denominated term deposits from banks range
between 0.70% and 0.75% (31 December 2010: 2.85% and 3.91%). Interest rates on USD
denominated term deposits from banks range between 0.40% and 5.00% (nil on 31 December

2010).
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Deposits from customers

At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, deposits from customers comprised the following

items:
31 December 2011 31 December 2011

Demand " Time Total Demand Time Total
Saving deposits 71,255 1,404,083 1,475,338 42,169 550,731 592,900
FC Deposits 66,053 433,368 499,421 37,358 331,407 368,765
TL Deposits 5,202 970,715 975,917 4,811 219324 224135
Commercial deposits 35461 500,752 536,213 8,389 34,173 42,562
I(;I:;:Sci{:mmercml institutions’ 238 . 238 33 65 08
Total deposits from customers 106,954 1,904,835 2,011,789 50,591 584,969 635,560

At 31 December 2011, interest rates on term deposits in TL range between 4.25% and 12.80% (31
December 2010: 3.00% and 10.60%), interest rates on term deposits in EUR range between 0.40%
and 5.4% (31 December 2010: between 0.25% and 3.75%), interest rates on term deposits in USD
range between 0.25% and 5.50% (31 December 2010: between 0.25% and 4.00%), interest rates on

term deposits in CHF range between 0.75% and 1.50% ( 31 December 2010: between 0.50%

and

2.25 % ) and interest rates on term deposits in GBP range between 0.25% and 4% (31 December

2010: between 0.25% and 2.65%).

Other liabilities and provisions

At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, other liabilities comprised of the following items:

Taxes and duties withheld

Check clearance

Unused vacation pay liability
Payables to consultants and suppliers
Payment transfer orders

Blocked cheques

Unearned commission income
Miscellaneous payables

Others

Other liabilities

Provision for lawsuits
Employee termination benefits
Provisions

Total
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31 December 31 December
2011 2010
6,012 2,024
3,808 94
1,687 1,556
1,465 186
1,399 -
1,310 77
113 230

87 353
1,269 371
17,150 4,891
973 802
323 326
1,296 1,128
18,446 6,019
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Other liabilities and provisions (continued)

Employee Termination Benefits

In accordance with existing social legislation, the Bank is required to make lump-sum payments to
employees whose employment is terminated due to retirement or for reasons other than resignation
or misconduct. Such payments are calculated on the basis of 30 days’ pay (limited to a maximum
of TL 2,731.85 {full TL) and TL 2,517.01 (full TL) at 31 December 2011 and 2010, respectively)
per year of employment at the rate of pay applicable at the date of retirement or termination.

The principal actuarial assumptions used in the calculation of the total liability at the balance sheet
dates are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Discount rate 10.0 % 10.0 %
Expected rate of inflation 5.1% 51%

Movements in the present value of the employee termination benefits in the current year were as
follows:

2011 2010
Opening, 1 January 326 256
Current service cost 407 73
Interest cost 19 15
Benefits paid (429) (18)
Closing, 31 December 323 326

Borrowings from banks
Borrowings from banks as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 comprised the following items:

31 December 31 December
2011 2010

Borrowing from Banks
Turkish Lira 1,115 436
Foreign Currency 28,641 2,138
29,756 2,574
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Taxation

The Bank is subject to taxation in accordance with the tax procedures and the legislation effective
in Turkey. Corporation tax is computed on the statutory income tax base determined in accordance
with Tax Procedural Law. Corporate tax rate is 20%.

Turkish tax legislation provides for a temporary tax to be calculated and paid based on earnings
generated for each quarter. The temporary tax rate used in determining the temporary tax is 20%.
The temporary taxes paid quarterly are offset against the final tax liability for the year. The final
corporation tax, afier deducting the quarterly payments, becomes due and is paid in one installment
by 30 April.

In Turkey, the Tax Procedural Law does not provide a procedure for final agreement of tax
assessments. Tax returns are required to be filed within the fourth month following the balance
sheet date. The tax authorities can inspect tax returns and the related accounting records for a
retrospective maximum period of five years.

Tax losses can be carried forward for a maximum period of five years following the year in which
the losses were incurred.

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, taxation credit comprised the following:

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Current tax charge - --
Deferred tax benefit (3,102) 653
Total (3,102) 653

The Bank utilized the carry forward tax losses of 8,694 TL for the temporary corporate tax
calenlations in the current year.

The total provision for taxes on income is different than the amount computed by applying the
statutory tax rate to loss from operations before provision for taxes on income as shown in the
following reconciliation:

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Profit/(loss) before income tax 28,446 (18,453)
At statutory income tax rate (5,689) 3,691
Nondeductible expenses (304) (116)
Other tax exempt income 95 170
Utilization of previously unrecognized tax losses 1,739 -
Other temporary differences 1,057 (437)
Taxation (3,102) 3,308
Allowance for deferred tax - (2,655)
Tax charge (3,102) 653
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Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010 are

attributable to the items detailed in the table below:

Deferred tax assets
Statutory losses carried forward
Unearned revenue
Derivatives held for trading purpose
Provision for vacation pay
Reserve for employee severance indemnity
Allowance for loan losses
Others

' Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax linbilities
Fair value of loans and advances to customers
Derivatives held for trading purpose
Others

Total deferred tax liahilities

Net deferred tax assets
Allowance for deferred tax asset
Net deferred tax asset after allowances

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
21,078 22,757
1,291 970
- 4,246

337 311

- 65 65
664 1,032
442 114
23,877 29,495
607 3,456
2,636 -
386 465
3,629 3,921
20,248 25,574
- {2,655)
20,248 22,919

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the breakdown of the tax losses carried forward "

in terms of their final years of utilization is as follows:

Expiry years of the tax losses carried forward
2011
2013
2014
2015

The movement of deferred tax asset is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the period
Deferred tax charged to income statement
Deferred tax recognised under equity
Allowance for deferred tax asset

Balance at the end of the period
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31 December 31 December
2011 2010
- 6,898
62,944 64,444
19,837 19,837
22,608 22,608
105,389 113,787
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
22,919 22,266
(3,102) 3,308
431 -
- (2,655)
20,248 22,919
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Share capital and capital advance
The Bank increased its nominal capital by 122,465 TL as of 15 March 2011, which was 202,535
TL on 31 December 2010. After the capital increase, the share of Credit Europe Bank N.V. which
was %95 as of 31 December 2010 has increased to 97% and the share of Banco Comercial
Portugues S.A has decreased from 5% to 3%. At 31 December 2011, the total statutory nominal
value of authorized and paid-in share capital of the Bank is TL 325,000 represented by
32,500,000,000 registered shares of one 0.01 Turkish Liras each (31 December 2010: TL 202,535
represented by 202,535,316,000 registered shares of one 0.001 Turkish Liras each). All of the
shares are ordinary shares, there is no preferred share.
As of 20 September 2011, the Bank has taken a decision to increase its paid in capital by
41,000,000 Euro in terms of TL equivalent. TL 52,250 of the capital increase was transferred to the
Bank on 10 October 2011; while the remaining TL 49,400 was transferred on 1 December 2011.
As of 31 December 2011, such amounts are classified as “capital advance” under shareholders’
equity. Therefore, the Bank’s nominal capital has increased to TL 426,650. After the approval of
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency, General Assembly was held on 26 January 2012 and
the increase in paid in capital was registered.
At 31 December 2011, the restatement effect of paid in capital is TL 19,939 (31 December 2010:
TL 19,939).
Accumulated losses
At 31 December 2011 and 2010, accumulated losses are TL 87,118 and TL 112,462, respectively
which include gain on sale of building amounting to TL 9,502 which will be kept in a special fund
account under equity for tax compliance purposes for five years as part of tax exemption and
accumulated carry forward losses of prior years’.
Unrealized losses on available-for-sale investments, net of tax
At 31 December 2011, unrealized gross loss on available-for-sale investments is TL 2,158. The tax
effect of unrealized losses on available-for-sale investments is TL 431, and the net unrealized loss
amount is TL 1,727 (31 December 2010: None).
Commitments and contingent liabilities
22.1 Letters of guarantee and credit
As at 31 December 2011, the Bank is contingently liable for letters of guarantee and credit given
amounting to TL 228, 376 (31 December 2010: TL 77,081).
22.2 Other commitments
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
Asset buy-sell commitments - 87,845
Commitments for credit card expenditure limits 4,861 5,384
Commitments for credit card and retail banking promotions 80 120
Payment commitments for cheques 19,425 6,083
Other irrevocable commitments 37,652 2,313
Total 62,018 101,745
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Commitments and contingent liabilities (continued)

22.3 Derivative contracts

Commitments for purchase of foreign currencies under option, forward and swap contracts at 31
December 2011 and 31 December 2010 are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
Purchase Purchase
Forward buy-sell commitments 246,570 3,104
Swap agreements for trading purposes 1,527,396 740,663
Options 227,187 39,167
Forward agreements for trading purposes 210,726 11,206
2,211,879 794,140
Maturity analysis of derivative instruments is as follows:
Uptol 1to3 3to6 6to12 Over
31 December 2011 month months months months 1 year Total
Interest rate swaps -- - -- -- -- -
Cross currency swaps - 373,413 190,983 -- -- 564,396
Forward and swap exchange contracts 1,109,752 85,908 142,883 81,753 - 1,420,296
Options 177,272 41,511 3,404 - - 227,187
Total 1,287,024 500,832 342,270 81,753 - 2,211,879
Uptol 1te3 3tob 6tol12 Overl
31 December 2010 month months months months year Total
Interest rate swaps - - - 23,466 253,015 276,481
Cross currency swaps - - 10,287 - 15,962 26,249
Forward and swap exchange contracts 399,672 52,571 -- -- - 452243
Options 35,634 3,533 - - - 39,167
Total 435,306 56,104 10,287 23466 268,977 794,140
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Related parties

For the purpose of this report, the Bank’s ultimate parent company, Credit Europe Bank N.V. and
all its subsidiaries, and the ultimate owners, directors and executive officers of Fibabanka A.S. are
referred to as related parties. During the course of the business, the Bank has made placements

with and also received deposits from them at various terms.

Until the sale process of the Bank was completed on December 27, 2010, the parent company was
Banco Comercial Portugues. The BCP, its affiliates and the members of the Board of Directors
constituted the related parties before this date and transactions with the BCP have been presented

below as related party transactions.
{a) Millennium BCP Group:

Transactions with related parties

Interest income

Interest expense

Net trading expense

Non cash loan commission income

Non cash loans to related parties

(b) Credit Europe Bank N.V.:

Balances with related parties

Due from banks — Credit Europe Bank N.V.
Deposit from banks - Credit Europe Bank N.V.

Transactions with related parties

Interest income

Interest expense

Net trading income

Non cash loan commission expense

53

31 December 31 December
2011 2010

- 117

- 1,166

- 7,131

-- 18

31 December 31 December
2011 2010

- 450

31 December 31 December
2011 2010

0,857 —~

379 113,864

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
10 18
1,235 51
1,147 149
3 -
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Related parties (continued)

(b) Credit Europe Bank N.V.(continued):

Non cash loans to related parties

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
10,847 -

Interest and commission rates applicable to these transactions approximate the market rates.

Derivative transactions with related parties

Swap agreements for trading purposes
Options

{c) Other related parties

31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Purchase Sale Purchase Sale
1,702,300 1,693,072 375,745 381,572
2,834 3,150 -- --
1,705,134 1,696,222 375,745 381,572

Other related parties stand for the other real persons (members of board of directors or indirect
shareholders) and legal entities directly or indirectly owned by the shareholders of the Bank.

Deposits from other related parties
Non cash loans to other related parties
Interest expense

(d) Remuneration and benefits of key management

31 December 31 December
2011 2010

94,824 -

999 -

1,975 -

The key management and the members of the Board of Directors received remuneration and fees
totaling TL 2,250 for the year ended 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010: TL 1,896).

Net interest income

Interest income

Loans and advances to customers
Due from banks

Derivative assets

Debt instruments

QOthers

Interest expense

Deposits from banks and customers
Saving deposits insurance

Fund borrowed

Derivative liabilities

Obligations under repurchase agreements
Other

Net interest income

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
161,681 64,035
3,556 5,683
7,952 6,793
3,422 1,827

3 28
176,614 78,366
84,072 38,400
1,591 1,162
13,523 65
5,558 18,890
407 29
200 -
105,351 58,546
71,263 19,820
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25  Fees and commission income and expense

Project commissions (*)

Asset management fees (¥¥)
Commissions from non-cash loans
Others

Fees and commission income

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
6,994 264
1,874 2,044
2,168 640
2,036 2,335
13,072 5,283

(*) Project commission fees relate to fees earned by the Bank through loan intermediary services

between the customers and credit institutions.

(**)Asset management fees relate to fees earned by the Barnk on investment funds and accounts.

Payment and transaction fees
Credit card fees
Other

Fees and commission expense

26  Net trading income

Gains on derivative transactions
Foreign exchange gain /(losses)
Gain on sale of debt instruments, net

27  Other Income

Bonus accrual reversal

(rain on sale of non-current assets held for sale
and tangible assets

Gain on sale of non-performing loans

Others

28  Personnel Expenses

Wages and salaries

Social security premiums

Employee health insurance expenses
Termination and vacation pay expenses
Others

55

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
(268) (175)
(377 €10r)]
(398) (253)
(1,043) (737)
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
3,914 2,877
1,300 (2,875)
568 3,055
5,782 3,057
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
- 1,440
593 1,216
519 -
616 374
1,728 3,030
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
24,464 17,370
3,914 2,607
1,001 1,114
2,313 357
3,004 2,781
34,696 24,229
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Other Expenses

Rent expenses

Information technology expenses
Telecommunication expenses
Taxes other than on income

Consultancy expenses
Transportation expenses
Electricity expenses
Cleaning expenses
Office supplies
Maintenance expenses
Advertisement expenses
Others

Subsequent events

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
7,838 5,832
3,018 2,687
1,744 1,383
2,276 1,738
1,106 919
1,220 618
578 515
696 501
554 187
351 228
1,288 38
2,682 2,563
23,351 17,209

On 2 December 2011, BRSA has given permission for issuing bond with a maturity up to 360-days
and 150,000 TL limit. The offering circular has been approved by the Capital Market Board on 10
January 2012 and it has been registered to the Istanbul Trade Register Office on 19 January 2012.
The Bank has issued 75 million TL zero coupon bond with 31 August 2012 maturity date on 29
February 2012, 1 March 2012 and 2 March 2012.

As of 20 September 2011, the Bank has taken-a decision to increase its paid in capital by
41,000,000 Euro in terms of TL equivalent, The first tranche of the related increase was transferred
to the Bank on 10 October 2011 as 52,250 TL; the second tranche was transferred on 1 December
2011 as 49,400 TL. As of 31 December 2011, such amounts have been accounted as capital
advance. Following the approval of BRSA, the extraordinary General Assembly was held on 26
January 2012 and the increase in paid in capital recorded as ‘““capital advance” was registered.
Therefore, the Bank’s nominal capital has increased to 426,650 TL.
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